
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Board Packet 

July 28, 2022 

 

 

 
  



 

July 28, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

THURSDAY, July 28, 2022     
6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  AGENDA 
 

COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams        Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

              Keith Sattler                       Kristi Mellema, CQO  
              Brandon Bowden       Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
              Neilan McPartland                                                                                                 Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO      
                                   
                    
   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
   
 
  II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Agenda 
 
 
 IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Consent Agenda 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for June 30, 2022.    
       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers #165938 through #166479 dated 06-23-22 through 07-20-22 in the amount of 
             $7,222,196.25. 
                   
 V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.  Medical Staff Report and Credentialing       Dr. Sollers       
             Action Requested - Advancement from Provisional 
             1. Advancement from Provisional 
            Michael Parmley, MD – Locum Tenens privileges in General Surgery effective August 1, 2022 through January   

31, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

July 28, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

          2. New Appointment 
               Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinic Privileges 
              Sameh Salama, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff with requested privileges in General Surgery effective 

August 1, 2022 through January 31, 2023. 
 

Jung H. Kim, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine effective   
August 1, 2022 through January 31, 2023. 

  
         3.  Reappointment 
  Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges 
            Mimi Lee, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
               August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2024. 
 
               Robert Lada, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective       

August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2024. 
 

Biggya Sapkota, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective     
August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2024. 

 
              Gulam Ashfaq Khan, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Radiology 
               effective August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2024. 
 
               Michael Marvi, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 

August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2024. 
 
               Lilith Judd, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective August 

1, 2022 through July 31, 2024. 
            
    
VI.   FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
         A.  Review Financial Reports for June 2022 (Attachment O)                                                                            Craig 
               Action Requested – Financial Reports 
 
VII. SERVICES 
        A. 2022 Strategic Plan Semi-Annual Report (Attachment A)                                                                              All 
         
        B. Replacement Facility Update                                                                                                                               Craig 
 
   
 VIII.  QUALITY 
 
         A. 2022 Strategic and Patient Care Scorecard Review                                                                                        Kristi 
 
         B.  Legislative and Political Updates                                                                                              Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
         C.   CEO/Operations Report                             Craig  
 
  
  IX.  ADJOURN 
 
  



 

 

 
PMH 

Board of Commissioners 
Work Plan – FY2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
January 
 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve 2022 Strategic Plan 
and 2022 Patient Care Scorecards 

• Sign Financial Disclosure and Conflict 
of Interest Statements 

• Approve 2022 Risk Management and 
Quality Assurance Plans 

• Select and Approve Board Officers 

• Review Board Committee structure 
and membership 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve acquisition of surgical 
equipment 

• Approve radiologist contracts 

• Approve Construction Loan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Employee Engagement 
Survey Results 

• Review 2021 Medical Staff 
Engagement Survey Results 

 
QUALITY: 

• Review Board Self-Evaluation 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review semi-annual financial 
performance report for PMH Clinics 

 
SERVICES: 
     Replacement Facility Update 

• Construction Loan Schedule Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
February SERVICES: 

• Approve construction mini-MACC 

• Approve construction documents 
 

QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Board Action Plan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend AHA Governance Conference  
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary report 

• Review Patient Engagement Plan 
 
SERVICES: 

Replacement Facility Update:  

• Construction Documents 

• Mini-MACC 

• Schedule 

March QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2022 Corporate Compliance 
Plan 

• Approve 2022 Infection Prevention 
Control Plan 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 

 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Providers’ Day Celebration 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accept 2021 Audit Report 
 
SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 

 
 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review 2021 Utilization Review 
Performance 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review 2021 Corporate Compliance 
Report  

• Review 2021 Infection Prevention 
Summary 
 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Performance 
Report 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Presentation of the 2021 Audit 
Report by Auditors 

• Capital Campaign Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
PATIENT LOYALTY 

• Approve the 2022 Utilization Review 
Plan 

 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 

April QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Community Benefits 
Report 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Conduct CEO Evaluation 
 

SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 
QUALITY: 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Review 2021 Community Benefits 
Report 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Leadership Performance 
(LEM) 

• Review Employee Engagement Plan 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 FPPE/OPPE Summary 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Interpreter Services Plan 

• Call Center Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
May EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Hospital Week 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Medical Staff Engagement Plan 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Employee Retirement Update 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Customer Service Program 
 
 

June QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2021 CAH Annual Report 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2022 Cost Report 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Report 2022 Q1 Utilization Review 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leader Assessment and 
Development Program 
 

SERVICES: 

• Marketing Update 

• PMH Telehealth Update 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accounting Software Update 
 

July MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend BOC, Medical Staff and 
Leadership Engagement Activity 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Single Audit 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Review PMH Clinic productivity 
 
 

QUALITY: 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
 

 
 

• Quality Committee Report 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Board Judiciary Responsibilities 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Human Resources Update 

• Review Leadership and Exempt Wage 
Scales 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

• Foundation Update 
 

August EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend end of summer Engagement 
Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
all staff 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Banking relationship Selection 
  

No Board Work Session 
 
 
 
 
 

September QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 

 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Benefit Changes 

• Review Leadership Development 
Activities 

 
SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility update 
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Nurse Educator Update 

October  QUALITY: 

• Conduct 2023 Strategic Planning  



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

 
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leadership Accountability 
Resource Tools 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary 
 

November FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Property Tax 
Request for County Commissioners 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update 
 
SERVICES: 

• Review draft 2023 Strategic Plan; 
2023 Marketing and IT Plans; and 
Medical Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Non-exempt (union) 
performance evaluation template 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review draft 2023 Budget 
 

December QUALITY: 

• Complete Board Self-Evaluations 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve the 2023 Environment of 
Care Plan 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve 2023 Strategic Plan; 2023 
Marketing and IT Plans; and Medical 

QUALITY: 

• Review the 2022 Environment of 
Care Plan 
 

 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2023 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend holiday celebration 
 

 



                       2022 -  Patient Care Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 2020

Quality

Left Without Being Seen <0.80% 2.02% 1.47% 0.88% 2.25% 2.97% 3.88% 2.35% 1.47% 0.80%

Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients <44 min 53             56             51             51             45             51                   51             60 70

Median Time from ED Arrival to Departure for Discharged ED Patients <107 min 109           115           114           114           110           134                 116           117 128

Severe Preeclamptic Mothers:  Timely Treatment Rate >90.00% 42.86% 57.14% 86.21% 60.00% 84.62% 90.91% 68.00% N/A N/A

All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions <2.70% 9.59% 3.28% 5.66% 3.64% 6.82% 5.63% 5.88% 5.80% 3.80%

Sepsis - Early Management Bundle >94.40% 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 92.31% 94.40% 72.73%

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0% 0.29%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result  <21.89% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 23.02% 21.89% 27.61%

Medication Reconciliation Completed >90.00% 96.30% 94.74% 90.74% 92.00% 88.00% 85.00% 90.96% 46% 47.15%

Turnaround time of 30 minutes or less for STAT testing <30 min 22.0         21.0         21.0         21.0         19.0         19.0               20.5         38 37.5

Median Time to ECG for Patients Presenting to the ED with Chest Pain < 6.3 min 5.0            3.0            5.0            5.0            4.0            4.0                  4.3            6.3 7

Surgical Site Infection <0.19% 0.00% 0.59% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.07% 0.19% 0.25%

Bar Code Scanning:  Medication Compliance >93.50% 94.91% 95.77% 95.43% 95.00% 94.54% 93.76%       94.90% 93.50% 98.90%

Bar Code Scanning:  Patient Compliance >94.70% 96.42% 95.81% 96.17% 96.16% 95.95% 94.83%       95.89% 94.70% N/A

*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (iVantage) >61 61             61             36             36             36             36                   31             61 53

*Falls with Injury <2 -           -           -           -           -           1                     1               3 2

Green at or above Goal  (4)

Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)

Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)



                               2022 -  Strategic Plan Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 Avg 2020 Avg

Patient Loyalty

IP - "Would Recommend" >93.1% 94.8% 92.4% 91.7% 92.9% 90.5% 96.4% 92.1% 93.1% 87.9%

ED - "Would Recommend" >84.0% 83.9% 81.7% 76.4% 88.0% 88.8% 90.7% 84.1% 84.0% 81.4%

Acute Care - "Would Recommend" >91.8% 90.9% 94.4% 87.5% 94.4% 87.5% 91.7% 90.3% 91.8% 84.1%

OB - "Would Recommend" >93.6% 99.0% 100.0% 97.7% 100.0% 88.9% 100.0% 96.5% 93.6% 92.3%

Outpatient Surgery - "Would Recommend" >96.6% 100.0% 100.0% 97.2% 97.7% 94.4% 95.3% 97.0% 96.6% 89.8%

Clinic - "Would Recommend" >91.0% 92.8% 97.5% 91.7% 97.6% 91.8% 94.3% 93.5% 91.0% 87.3%

Outpatient - "Would Recommend" >94.1% 98.1% 96.1% 93.5% 96.0% 96.0% 94.8% 95.7% 94.1% 88.1%

Composite Score >92.9% 95.7% 95.2% 94.4% 94.1% 93.8% 93.7% 93.7% 92.9% N/A

Medical Staff Development

Medical Staff Turnover <10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 4% 1% 12% 0.2%

Prosser Specialty Clinic Visits 1,352       1,386       1,429       1,617       1,428       1,366       1,422       1,441       1,318       954           

Benton City Clinic Visits 868           775           650           822           657           870           730           751           732           837           

Prosser RHC Clinic Visits 1,291       1,063       1,111       1,206       1,106       1,211       1,122       1,137       1,227       1,226       

Grandview Clinic Visits 969           1,055       833           1,021       873           986           960           955           778           589           

Women's Health Center  679           508           600           660           533           611           708           603           602           601           

*# of Active Medical Staff >51 52 53 53 54 55 54 54 51             45             

Employee Development

403(B) Participation Rate >98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 46%

Average Recruitment Time (days) <21 19 26 40 11 15 19 22             21             32             

# of Open Positions (Vacancies) <23 32 28 35 31 32 39 33             32             29             

Hours of Overtime - Overtime/Total Hours Worked <4.5% 6.8% 5.3% 4.9% 6.0% 6.3% 6.1% 5.9% 6.1% 5.9%

Agency - Cost/Total Labor <7.7% 6.2% 10.6% 6.9% 6.9% 5.7% 7.9% 7.4% 7.7% 7.6%

Turnover Rate <0.6% 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 1.2% 1.0% 0.9% 0.6%

Timely Evaluations >71.8% 95.1% 85.0% 84.2% 93.0% 79.0% 80.0% 86.1% 71.8% 70.2%

Education Hours/FTE >2.15 0.64         1.33         1.39         0.95         0.68         0.75         0.96         1.05         1.22         

New Hire (Tenure) < 1 year <10% 0.6% 0.6% 0% 0.6% 0.3% 0.3% 0.4% 10% 0%

* Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injuries <10.25 11 7 7 0 0 6.3 5               19.49       10.25       

Quality

ED Encounters - Left Without Being Seen <0.8% 2.0% 1.5% 0.9% 2.3% 3.0% 3.9% 2.2% 1.4% 0.8%

*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3               2               

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.1% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.0% 0.3%

All-Cause Unplanned Readmissions within 30 Days <2.7% 9.6% 3.3% 5.7% 3.6% 6.8% 5.6% 5.8% 6.1% 3.8%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result <21.88% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 23.02% 21.88% 27.61%

Services

ED Visits 1,083       1,287       949           1,138       1,246       1,448       1,419       1,248       1,105       805           

Inpatient Admissions 96             123           98             115           102           89             120           108           116           83             

OB Deliveries 50             47             41             61             46             41             38             46             49             41             

Surgeries and Endoscopies 187           162           170           268           274           288           337           250           179           101           

Diagnostic Imaging Procedures 2,851       2,462       2,619       3,134       2,915       2,981       3,091       2,867       2,992       2,280       

Lab Procedures 14,000     14,139     13,806     14,818     13,359     15,075     14,738     14,323     14,327     11,768     

Adjusted Patient Days 1,900       1,627       1,819       2,016       1,838       2,127       2,461       1,981       1,697       1,393       

Therapy Visits 1,651       1,225       1,391       1,542       1,339       1,420       1,701       1,436       1,453       1,314       

Outpatient Special Procedures Visits 325           241           221           332           249           277           306           271           324           247           

Financial Performance

Net Days in Accounts Receivable 50             55             58             55             56             55             55             55             51             63             

*Total Margin 6.90% 5.2% 13.6% 13.3% 11.2% 5.2% 16.8% 11.2% 18.40% 4.50%

Net Operating Revenue/FTE 19,431$   17,959$   18,695$   21,800$   19,651$   20,465$   21,737$   20,051$   20,682$   17,191$   

Labor as % of net Revenue 56.30% 63.18% 52.36% 48.39% 62.85% 60.40% 50.97% 56.36% 57.00% 61.30%

Operating Expense/FTE 18,177$   17,959$   16,155$   17,591$   17,598$   19,469$   17,756$   17,755$   16,940$   15,891$   

*Days Cash on Hand 109           142           150           154           150           148           152           152           155           183           

Commercial % 28.60% 29.90% 30.90% 31.80% 31.70% 31.40% 31.60% 31.60% 29.00% 29.00%

Total Labor Expense/Total Expense 60.20% 60.73% 60.33% 59.41% 62.99% 62.87% 60.43% 61.13% 61.00% 61.30%

Green at or above Goal 

Yellow within 10% of Goal

Red More than 10% below Goal

*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number



 

 

 

BOARD WORK SESSION                                                                    June 28, 2022                                              WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
 

STAFF PRESENT GUESTS   COMMUNITY        
MEMBERS 

• Dr. Steve Kenny                        

• Keith Sattler  

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Susan Reams 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers 

Paul Kramer, NV5 
Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG 
Adam Trumbour, Senior Project 
Manager, NV5 
Gary Hicks, Financial Advisor 
Brandon Potts, Vice President- 
Bouten Construction 

None 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

 I.   CALL TO ORDER Meeting was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

None. None. 

II.    Public Comment  None. None. 

III.  SERVICES DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

        A.  Replacement Facility  
              Update 

 
 
 

   

    1. Design Update 
         a. VE Update 

(Attachment D) 
(Attachment E) 

Kurt Broeckelmann bcDG, reviewed the 
items being investigated on the VE log. 
Each item was discussed, and Kurt gave an 
update to the Board regarding the 
proposed changes and their impact on the 
schedule and budget. 
 

None. None. 



 

 

                       b. SEPA/Traffic 
Study/CON 

                          (Attachment F) 
                          (Attachment G) 
                          
                       c. DOH/USDA/City of   

Prosser Reviews 
 
                       d. SVID 
                      

Project Team members updated the Board 
on: our SEPA/ Traffic Study/CON issues; 
regulatory (DOH/USDA/City) reviews and 
our progress on them; and our plan to 
work with SVID (Sunnyside Valley 
Irrigation District) on burying the overflow 
canal on our property. 
 
 
 

None. None. 

                2.  GC/CM Update 
                      a.  Bouten     

Construction 
                        (Attachment J) 
                      b. GC/CM Proposal 
           

Brandon Potts, Vice President for Bouten 
Construction company, provided an 
overview of their company and why they 
would be a good GC/CM for the PMH 
project. He also briefly discussed the pre-
construction agreement between PMH 
and Bouten (Attachment K). A GC/CM 
contract with Bouten will be reviewed 
with the Board in August. 
 
 
 

None.   

                3. Draft Schedule Update 
                     (Attachment M) 

Brandon and the team also reviewed a 
very tentative schedule (Attachment M) 
for our replacement facility project. Based 
on the discussion, additional changes will 
be made to the schedule, but if everything 
goes well, groundbreaking for the project 
will occur before the end of 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None. None. 



 

 

                4.  Financing      
 

              a. USDA 
 
              b. Construction Loan 

              

Financing of the project was briefly 
discussed by Gary Hicks including potential 
options (USDA; increasing the amount of 
equipment leased, revenue bond; owner’s 
equity) for additional financing if needed. 
It was noted that no financing decisions 
can be made until we have a GMP 
(Guaranteed Maximum Price) for the 
project. 
 
 

None.       None. 

        B.  Capital Equipment/ 
Renovation Requests 

            1. GE Wireless Electronic 
Fetal Monitor 

                 (Attachment N) 
 
           2. Supplemental OR AC 

System  
                (Attachment O)   
   
 

Merry Fuller and Craig Marks reviewed 
several capital equipment acquisition 
requests including: a GE Wireless 
Electronic Fetal Monitor; and a 
Supplemental OR AC System. 

None. The Board will be 
asked to approve 
these acquisitions 
at the June Board 
Meeting. 

IV. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

         A. PMH Foundation Update Craig provided a brief PMH Foundation 
update including the success of the recent 
Bottles Brews and Barbecues Event. He 
noted that attendance was strong, but we 
would not know the financial results for 
several more days. He also reported that 
the PMH Board would be asked to 
approve Allen Steen as a PMH Foundation 
Board Member at the June Board 
Meeting. 
 
 
 
 

None. The Board will be 
asked to approve 
Allen Steen as a 
new PMH 
Foundation Board 
Member at the 
June Meeting. 



 

 

        B. 2021 PMH Medicare Cost 
Report 

               (Attachment V) 

David Rollins reviewed the 2021, PMH 
Medicare cost report 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None. The Board will be 
asked to approve 
the 2021 PMH 
Medicare Cost 
Report at the June 
Board Meeting. 

 V. QUALITY DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

            A. 2021 CAH Annual 
Program Review 

                  (Attachment Y) 

Kristi Mellema reviewed the 2021 PMH 
CAH Annual Program Review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None. The Board will be 
asked to approve 
the 2021 PMH 
CAH Annual 
Program Review 
at the June Board 
Meeting. 

           B. Board Policies  
                (Attachment AA) 
                (Attachment BB) 
                (Attachment CC) 

Craig briefly reviewed the attached Board 
Policies and answered questions regarding 
them. 

None. The Board will be 
asked to approve 
the Board Policies 
at the June Board 
Meeting. 

VI. ADJOURN 

There being no further regular business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 7:42 p.m. 

 

 



 

 

 

        BOARD MEETING                                                                                  June 30, 2022,                                                WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT                         MEDICAL STAFF                                              GUESTS 

• Steve Kenny Ph.D. 

• Glenn Bestebreur (absent) 

• Susan Reams 

• Keith Sattler 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO  

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO (absent) 

• Kristi Mellema, CCQO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Syed Hashmi   

              AGENDA                                                                                                                                                              DISCUSSION                                    ACTION      FOLLOW-UP 

   I.    Call to Order  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner 
Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

    

      A. Pledge of Allegiance        

 II.  Public Comment None.  None. None. 

III.  Approve Agenda 
 

None. Commissioner Sattler made a Motion to 
approve the revised May 26, 2022, Agenda.  
The Motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Reams and passed with 6 in favor, 0 
opposed.                 

None. 

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT 
       AGENDA  
      A. Board of Commissioners     
           Meeting Minutes for 
           May 26, 2022. 
       
      B. Payroll & AP Vouchers  

       #165154 through 

None. Commissioner Reams made a Motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda. The Motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Bowden           
and passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed.  

None. 



 

 

      #165937 dated 05.19.22. 
        through 06.22.22 in the     

amount of $8,428,025.47; 
and Board Policies 
#100.0029 #100.00.30 
#100.0032              

 

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT                                 DISCUSSION                                                                     ACTION                                       FOLLOW-UP 

     A.    Medical Staff Report     
and Credentialing 

 
 
 

  None. 

1. Advancement from 
Provisional 

Dr. Syed Hashmi presented the following providers 
for Advancement from Provisional: 
 

            Alex Arnold, ARNP – Advanced Practice Clinician 
Hospital privileges in Family Medicine effective July 
1, 2022   through February 1, 2024. 
 

               Stephen McPhee, PA-C – Advanced Practice 
Clinician Hospital privileges in Family Medicine 
effective July 1, 2022 through February 1, 2024. 
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the Advancement from 
Provisional Appointment and requested 
Clinical Privileges that were reviewed and 
recommended by the Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and Medical 
Executive Committee for the following 
providers was made by Commissioner 
Sattler and seconded by Commissioner 
Reams.  The Motion passed with 6 in favor, 
0 opposed. 

• Alex Arnold, ARNP 

• Stephen Mcphee, PA-C 

None. 

                      2.  New Appointments           
 

Dr. Syed Hashmi presented the following New 
Appointments:   
 

               Jacob Braun, DO – Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff 
with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine 
effective July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 
 

               Jacob Ernst, DO – Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff 
with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine 
effective July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 
 

A Motion to approve the New Appointments 
and requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following providers was 
made by Commissioner Dietrich and 
seconded by Commissioner Reams.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 

• Jacob Braun, DO 

•  Jacob Ernst, DO 

None. 



 

 

               Jonathan Kim, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens 
Staff with requested privileges in Emergency 
Medicine effective July 1, 2022 through December 
31, 2022. 
 

               Eric Thomas, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff 
with requested privileges in General Surgery 
effective July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022.  
 

               Feras Jalab, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine Staff 
with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology 
effective July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 
 

• Jonathan Kim, MD 

• Eric Thomas, MD 

•  Feras Jalab, MD 

              3. Reappointment Dr. Syed Hashmi presented the following providers 
for Reappointment:   
Jose Santa-Cruz, MD – Reappointment to Active 
Staff with requested privileges in Family Medicine 
effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
Coral Tieu, MD – Reappointment to Active Staff 
with requested privileges in Otolaryngology 
effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
Thomas Tieu, MD- Reappointment to Active Staff 
with requested privileges in Urology effective July 
1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
 Robert Wenger, DO- Reappointment to Active 
Staff with requested privileges in Emergency 
Medicine effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 
2024.  
 
Brian Staley, MD - Reappointment to Consulting 
Staff with requested privileges in Pathology 
effective July 1,2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
Danielle Whitley, MD- Reappointment to Locum 
Tenens Staff with requested privileges in 

A Motion to approve the reappointment and 
requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following provider was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner Sattler.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

• Jose Santa-Cruz, MD 

• Coral Tieu, MD 

• Thomas Tieu, MD 

• Robert Wenger, DO 

• Brian Staley, MD 

• Danielle Whitley, MD 

• Afton Dunham, ARNP 

• Pamela Morris, ARNP 

• Rebecca Morris, CNM 

• Jarret Kuo, MD 

• Karen Phillips, MD 

• Shannon St. Clair, MD 

• Frank Welte, MD 

• James Wang, MD 

 



 

 

Emergency Medicine effective July 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2024 
 
Afton Dunham, ARNP- Reappointment to 
Advanced Practice Clinician Staff with requested 
privileges in Family Medicine effective July 1, 2022 
through June 30, 2024. 
 
Pamela Morris, ARNP- Reappointment to Advance 
Practice Clinician Staff with requested privileges in 
Family Medicine effective July 1, 2022 through June 
30, 2024. 
 
 Rebecca Morris, CNM- Reappointment to 
Advanced Practice Clinician Staff with requested 
privileges in Midwifery effective July 1, 2022 
through June 30, 2024. 
 
Jarret Kuo, MD- Reappointment to Telemedicine 
Staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic 
Radiology effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 
2024.  
 
Karen Phillips, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective July 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2024. 
 
 Shannon St. Clair, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective July 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2024. 
 
Frank Welte, MD- Reappointment to Telemedicine 
Staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic 
Radiology   effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 
2024. 
 



 

 

James Wang, MD- Reappointment to Telemedicine 
Staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
  

VI.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP                        DISCUSSION                                                                              ACTION                                                       FOLLOW-UP 

      A.  Review Financial  
            Reports for May 
            2022 (Attachment U) 

 

David Rollins presented the May 2022 Financial 
Reports.   
 

A Motion to accept the Financial Reports for 
April 2022, was made by Commissioner 
Bowden, and seconded by Commissioner 
Dietrich. The Motion passed with 6 in favor, 
0 opposed. 
 

None. 

B. PMH Foundation New 
Board Member-Alan Steen 

The PMH Foundation requested that Allen Steen be 
approved to serve as a PMH Foundation Board 
Member. 

A Motion to approve Alan Steen as a PMH 
Foundation Board Member was made by 
Commissioner Reams and seconded by 
Commissioner Dietrich. The Motion passed 
with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

C.   Capital Equipment     
 

            1. (1) GE Wireless 
Electronic Fetal 
Monitor at a cost not 
to exceed $30,584.14 
(Attachment N)  

 
 
 

 

Merry Fuller presented (1) GE Wireless Electronic 
Fetal Monitor cost and benefit report. 
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the acquisition of (1) 
GE Wireless Electronic Fetal Monitor at a 
cost not to exceed $30,584.14, was made by 
Commissioner Dietrich, and seconded by 
Commissioner Reams. The Motion passed 
with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None.    

             2. (1) Air Handling Unit-
OR at a cost not to 
exceed $16,678.00 
(Attachment O). 

 

Craig Marks presented (1) Air Handling Unit- OR 
cost and benefit report. 
 
 
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the acquisition of (1) 
Air Handling Unit- OR at a cost not to exceed 
$16,678.00 was made by Commissioner 
Sattler and seconded by Commissioner 
Reams. The Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 
opposed. 

None. 



 

 

 

D. 2021 Medicare Cost Report 
(Attachment V) 

David Rollins, CFO, presented the 2021 Medicare 
Cost Report for approval. 

A Motion to approve the 2021 Medicare 
Cost Report was made by Commissioner 
Reams and seconded by Commissioner 
Dietrich. The Motion passed with 6 in favor, 
0 opposed. 

None. 

VII.  QUALITY                                                                        DISCUSSION                                                                        ACTION                                         FOLLOW-UP 

A. 2021 PMH CAH Annual 
Program Review 

         (Attachment Y) 

Kristi Mellema presented the 2021 PMH CAH 
Annual Program Review for approval. 

A Motion to approve the 2021 PMH CAH 
Annual Program Review was made by 
Commissioner Sattler and seconded by 
Commissioner Dietrich. The Motion passed 
with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 

None. 

B.  COVID-19 Update/Covid 19 
Financial Plan  

              

Craig and David provided a COVID-19 Update and 
reviewed the COVID-19 Financial Plan. It was noted 
that this will be the last monthly COVID-19 update 
unless there are significant changes in the future. 
 
 
   

None. Updates will be 
provided as 
needed in the 
future. 

C. Legislative and Political   
Updates 

Commissioner Bestebreur was absent due to 
illness. Commissioner Kenny asked if anyone had 
any legislative or political updates? No Legislative 
or Political Updates were given. 
 
 
 

None. None. 

D.  CEO/Operations Report Craig provided a brief Operations Report based 
upon his written report included in the June Board 
Packet. Craig also encouraged everyone to attend 
the Provider Social on July 22nd at Whit Cellars. 
(Attachment T). 
 
 
 
 

None. 
 
 

None. 

VIII.  ADJOURN  

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 6:52 p.m. 



 

JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE                                                   July 20, 2022                                                  VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT NON-MEMBERS PRESENT 

• Commissioner S. Reams 

• Commissioner S. Kenny 

• C. Marks, CEO 

• Dr. B. Sollers 

• Dr. D. Weaver 
 

• K. Mellema, CQO, CCO 
 
 

     AGENDA ITEM                                                                                DISCUSSION                                            RECOMMENDATION            FOLLOW-UP 

CALL TO ORDER  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Reams at 7:05 am 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES June 2022 minutes were reviewed and approved by the Committee.  For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

QUALITY 

Quality Committee 
Report 

K. Mellema shared the 2022 Quality Committee Report which 
represents all the department quality presentations that have been 
presented from January through July.  The Quality Committee was 
created in 2019 with the purpose of sharing important quality topics 
to keep these initiatives at the forefront of the Directors minds as 
well as to serve as an educational moment.  New in 2022 was the 
addition of 6-month follow ups on the presentations given earlier in 
the year.  The intent of these follow up presentations are to show 
the progress of the Quality metrics that were being worked on 
earlier in the year. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

Strategic & Patient Care 
Scorecards 

K. Mellema reported that we are at or above goal or within 10% of 
goal on 38 of the 46 metrics on the Strategic Plan Scorecard.  June 
highlights include:  overall composite score for Patient Loyalty is 
93.7%.  Women’s Health had the highest number of office visits in 
June at 708 visits.  The 403(b)-participation rate has remained steady 
all year at 98%.  Diabetes Management if within 10% of goal at 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 



23.35%.  Surgeries and endoscopies are at 337 and Financial 
Performance remains strong with 152 days cash on hand. 
 
Patient Care Scorecard is at or above goal or within 10% of goal on 
11 of the 16 metrics.  L&D are at 90.91% for treatment of mothers 
with severe high blood pressure.  There have been no healthcare 
associated infections.  Bar code scanning for medication and patient 
compliance remain above goal at 93.76% and 94.83%.  We continue 
to work on the three ED metrics which have been challenging to 
meet due to the increase in ED volumes.  However, there is a plan in 
place to hire an advanced practice clinician to cover 10 hours a day 
during peak hours, 7 days a week. 

SERVICES 

Replacement Facility 
Update 

C. Marks reported that there will be no Board Work Session this 
month.  However, there will be one in August due to all the 
construction documents, value engineering, etc. All drawings were 
submitted to the DOH and to the city.  These documents have been 
reviewed and questions have been sent back to the design team 
who have provided answers to the questions which are now 
awaiting review.   
 
We were able to get the city to agree that we can defer road 
improvements (sidewalk) until the state comes in to put in a new 
overpass which could be 10 years or longer from now.  We hope to 
have this agreement completed in the next 30 days.  
 
Bidding for the project will occur in August. Bouten Construction has 
already put out flyers and is speaking with other contractors.   
 
From a finance perspective, we are keeping our options open and 
looking at using some of our own equity.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

2022 Semi-Annual 
Strategic Plan Report 

C. Marks reported that the 2022 Semi-Annual Strategic Plan report 
will be coming out this month.  There is still a lot of work to be done 
but we are being diligent in retrieving the necessary information to 
have this ready for the Board this month. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

Nutrition Services 
Update - Morrison 

C. Marks reported that Morrison officially starts August 1st, but the 
director (Lisa Reagor) has already started.   
 
 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 



MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Medical Staff 
Recruitment 

Dr. Sollers reported that our biggest recruitment is for orthopedic 
surgery.  There is a promising candidate by the name of Dr. Kelly 
who would be a great addition.  He is sports medicine fellowship 
trained.  He will be done with fellowship in August of 2023.   
 
We are actively recruiting for a PM&R/Pain provider.  There are a 
couple of candidates that look promising. 
 
We are needing to add counseling sessions in the Grandview clinic.  
There have been conversations with Steve Peters who is willing to 
expand his schedule outside of the Benton City Clinic.   
 
Also, we are putting a lot of effort into ensuring providers are happy 
by conducting an annual contract review and annual evaluations for 
all providers. 

Dr. Weaver offered to 
speak with Dr. Kelly.  Dr. 
Sollers will provide Dr. 
Weaver with Dr. Kelly’s 
contact information. 

Standing 
agenda item. 
 
 

Dermatology/GI Update C. Marks reported that GI has been added to our recruitment list.  
Dr. Cohen is very busy with a patient waitlist which constitutes the 
need for an additional GI provider. We will be looking for someone 
that does ERCPs since the demand is very high.  We also are in need 
of an advanced practice clinician for both GI and dermatology.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

Summer Social C. Marks reported that the Summer Social is this Friday night 
(7/22/2022) at WIT Winery in Prosser.  There is a luau theme and a 
full dinner planned.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

Employee Engagement 
Activities 

C. Marks reported that the annual Pool party is August 19th.  This is 
an end of summer event for all employees and their families.   
 
We had a great car wash for the employees on July 1st.  There was a 
good turnout and even washed a few patient cars too.  
 
We had a LDI last Friday for the Leadership team which was well 
received.  The morning started at Bookwalter Winery in Richland 
with an interactive learning session.  Afterwards everyone went to 
Atomic Bowl for a little bowling competition.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

Financial Performance – 
June 2022 

C. Marks reported that we had a gross revenue in June of $22.5 
million which is the best ever with a $1.4 million bottom line as 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 



represented by the Statement of Operations.  This document will be 
presented to the USDA if we need additional funds.   

Foundation Update 
 

C. Marks reported that the Bottles, Brews & BBQ event that was held 
in June did not quite break even.  Inflation took a majority of the 
profit.   
 
The 2nd Annual Golf tournament is September 9th at Canyon Lakes in 
Kennewick. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for 
PMH Clinics 

C. Marks reported that the semi-annual financial performance report 
for the PMH clinics will come out in the Board packet.  All clinics 
were meeting budget except for one. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

ADJOURNMENT & NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 

Meeting adjourned at 0835 

Next scheduled meeting 8/17/2022 

 

K. Mellema 7/20/2022 



 

July 25, 2022 Finance Committee  

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday – July 25, 2022,  

7:00 a.m. – Vineyard Conference Room 
AGENDA 

 MEMBERS:          STAFF: 
 Keith Sattler         Craig Marks 
 Neilan McPartland        David Rollins  
 Brandon Bowden        Stephanie Titus 
                   
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
         I.   APPROVE MINUTES 

Action Requested – June 23, 2022, Minutes 

 

       II.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
              A.  Review Financials – June 2022 (Attachment O)                                                          Stephanie 
                    Action Requested – June 2022 Financial Statements 
          
              B.  Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal                                  Stephanie  
 
   
              C.  Voucher Lists                                                                                                                                                 
                   Action Requested – Voucher List - Payroll and AP Vouchers # 165938 through #166479              Stephanie 
                   Dated 06-23-22 through 07-20-22 in the amount of $7,222,196.25.             
 
 
      
        III.  ADJOURN  

  

 

 



 

 

 

            FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  June 27, 2022                                    VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

                    
GUESTS 

• Keith Sattler 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden (absent) 
 
 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• David Rollins, CFO  

• Stephanie Titus, Director of Finance Operations 
 
 

  

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 7:07 a.m.  
 
 

 

II.   APPROVE MINUTES  
 

A motion to approve the 
Finance Committee Meeting 
Minutes for May 23, 2022, as 
presented was made by 
Neilan McPartland.  The 
motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved.   
 

None. 

III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
A. Review Financials –  

May 2022 
             (Attachment U) 

David Rollins reported Net Income of $408,167 in May 
and Gross Charges were $20,833,897 which was 8% 
higher than budget for the month and 24% greater 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the May 2022 
Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 

None. 



 

 

              than the prior year.  Net Operating Revenue came in 
at $7,904,634 (2% over budget).   
 
Expenses were $7,519,951 in May and 5% over budget 
driven by COVID retention payments, physician 
performance bonuses and higher supply costs.  
Surgeries were 288 vs 191 budget and ER visits were 
1,448 vs 1,104 budget. 
 
Cash Flow was $210,278 for the month and ($440,067) 
YTD.  AR decreased to a net 55 days overall. 
 
Discussed Revenue Cycle plans to reduce Days in AR > 
90 and the recent shift from Bad Debt to Charity and 
plans to further automate the Charity applications and 
Self-Pay discounts. 
 

of Commissioners was made 
by Neilan McPartland. The 
motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved.   

      B.  Review Accounts Receivable  
            and Cash Goal  
 

AR decreased slightly to 55 net days overall as 
Collections were $6,941,769 versus a goal of 
$7,728,976.  POS collections were $51,044 exceeding a 
budget of $15,000 and prior year $8,672.  POS 
collections YTD are $186,137 versus $75,000 budget 
and $88,366 prior year. 
 
 

None. None. 

     C.  Voucher Lists  
           Payroll and AP Vouchers 
           #165154 through #165937 
           Dated 05.19.22 through   
           06.22.22 in the amount of  
           $8,428,025.47.  
            
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the May 2022 
Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 
by Neilan McPartland. The 
motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved. 

None. 



 

 

 

    D.  Capital Equipment 
          1. (1) GE Wireless Electronic 

Fetal Monitor at a cost 
not to exceed $30,584.14    
(Attachment N) 

 
          2. (1) Air Handling Unit- OR at 

a cost not to exceed 
$16,678.00  

                     (Attachment 0) 
 

 Capital Equipment will be 
reviewed at the Board 
Meeting. 

None. 

III.  ADJOURN       

Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:43 am. 

 



MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

  PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM:   CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO 

DATE:   July 2022 

RE:  CEO REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________  

SERVICES 

1.  2022 Strategic Plan Semi-Annual Report 

     While we may officially be in the “dog days” of summer in Prosser based on our increasing 

temperatures, that is not the case throughout Prosser Memorial Health. The slow movement often 

connected to the “dog days” is nowhere to be found at PMH. We are busy caring for record levels of 

patients as we continue to pursue our Strategic Goals. In fact, as you can see in the attached report 

(Attachment A), we are busy in our pursuit of our strategic objectives such as a development of a 

replacement facility; the addition of several new Medical Staff members; and the continued 

development and growth of new services such as dermatology and gastroenterology. All of these 

activities take a tremendous amount of energy and dedication by our staff, and they are to be 

commended and thanked for their efforts! This growth and development is not an accident, but one 

of the results of our annual strategic planning. These results are reflected in our Pyramid of Success 

which has been updated with data through the end of June (Attachment B). The Pyramid of Success 

illustrates the steady progress we are making overall on each of our Pillars, but also reflects the 

reality that there are years where we underperform for various reasons (e.g., Pandemic). The theme, 

however, is steady improvement that will enable us to fulfill our Mission and Vision. A formal 

presentation of this report will be presented at the July Board Meeting, and we look forward to any 

questions you may have regarding this report. 

          

2. Replacement Facility Update 

      As is evidenced in our Strategic Plan Report, we continue to aggressively pursue all aspects of our 

replacement facility project. And overview of these activities is included in the July Monthly Progress 

Report from our Owner’s Representatives- NV5 (Attachment C); minutes from our last Project Team 

Meeting (Attachment D); and the project schedule for the next four months (Attachment E). To help 

compartmentalize the project, we will continue to utilize the following areas: Design; 

Construction/Schedule/Budget; and financing. Because we are in the middle of completing several 

key aspects of the project, only a brief update will be provided at the July Board Meeting and no 

members of the project team (other than the Administrative Team) will be present. 



A. Design 

     After completing the value engineering process, our design team (bcDG) is making final 

adjustments to our construction documents (e.g., slightly lower roofline). The final construction 

documents will be completed by the end of July and used in the bidding process beginning August 1. 

In July, the design team submitted responses to all regulatory agency (e.g., Department of Health, 

City of Prosser, USDA) questions and are currently waiting to hear back from them. Our project team 

continues to work with the City of Prosser in obtaining State Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA) 

approval and agreement on their Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance (MDNS) request. Both 

are needed to obtain a Certificate of Need (CON), from the Department of Health. Because no one 

knows when the Washington Department of Transportation will install a new overpass over I82 or 

when the remainder of North Gap Rd will be developed, the City of Prosser is willing to enter into an 

Agreement for Deferral of Frontage Improvements with us until further development plans are 

completed. Neither party wants us to make improvements only to have them ripped out in the 

coming years. Our attorneys will draft the final agreement which we hope to complete in August. We 

continue to work with Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District (SVID) on plans to bury the existing 

overflow canal on our property and relocating the buried canal to the western and southern borders 

of our property. We have a general agreement to bury the canal, but the details need to be worked 

out. The final two minor issues we have been working on are the eradication of noxious weeds 

(Scotch Thistle) on our property and combining our three individual lots into one. Both issues were 

completed in July. 

 

B. Construction/ Schedule/ Budget 

          Bouten Construction is busy preparing to conduct the bidding process in August. They have 

developed a flyer (Attachment F) and are reaching out to local contractors to create interest in our 

project and conducted an informational meeting for potential contractors on July 20th. The bidding 

process will be completed in August (assuming we receive satisfactory bids) and a Guaranteed 

Maximum Price (GMP)/ Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC), will be established by 

September 8th, for the Special Board Meeting. In addition, it is our intent to have the Board approve 

a GC/CM contract with Bouten Construction at the August or September 8th Board Meeting. While 

the schedule is still evolving if everything goes as planned, we will break ground before the end of the 

year. We will not work on the budget until we have completed the bid process in late August or early 

September.  

 

 

C. Financing 

     As was discussed last month, until we know that GMP in September, there is little we can do from 

a financing perspective. We are keeping all options open for obtaining additional financing, if 

necessary, including savings from value engineering; delaying future capital purchases; the use of 



additional PMH equity (cash); pursuing additional funds from the USDA or issuing other bonds; 

increasing our use of operating leases, etc. We plan to discuss a potential financing plan with the 

Board at the September 8th meeting. 

 

3. Nutrition Services- Morrison 

     Effective August 1, PMH will officially begin a new partnership with Compass One Healthcare, who 

operates Morrison Healthcare, to manage our Nutrition Services Department (Attachment G). Morrison 

has a long-standing reputation of bringing high quality food service to healthcare organizations across 

the world and implement standardization and process improvements to achieve efficiencies and 

enhance the patient experience at the same time. PMH conducted an exhaustive search for the right 

partner to bring our Nutritional Services to the next level. After analyzing many proposals and 

conducting interview and reference checks with other hospitals, Morrison was selected. We look 

forward to the innovation, technology, training, and experience this new partnership will bring to our 

patients and staff. 

 

     PMH employs 10 staff members in this department, including the Director. We outsource our 

dietician duties with Kadlec. Beginning in August, we will employ nine staff members. The Director and 

the Dietician will be Morrison employees. The Dietician role will start as half-time and will be onsite. Lisa 

Reagor will be our new Director of Nutritional Services. She has been onsite since the middle of July. 

Please join me in welcoming Lisa to the PMH team!  

      

     Morrison will invest $127,477 in capital improvement to our organization in the form of hardware 

and software to efficiently manage food orders from both the bedside and retail arena. Through their 

partnership with a third-party company called Jack & Olive, they will be able to provide the Busy Bean 

with fresh, affordable, grab-and-go items as well. 

 

     I would like to thank Victor Huyke for his years of dedicated service to PMH, our patients, and staff. 

We wish him well in all of his future endeavors and adventures!  

  

 

 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

1. Medical Staff Recruitment 

     A recent study released by Merritt Hawkin’s (the largest physician recruitment company in the 

country) indicated that the five physician specialties that generate the highest average annual net 

revenue for hospitals are cardiology, orthopedic surgery, gastroenterology, family medicine, and OB/ 



gynecology. While we recruit based on community need not potential revenue generation, it is 

comforting to know that our service area is able to support the specialties identified in the study and 

we have been successful in recruiting these specialties. Our current recruitment priorities are 

orthopedic surgery, physiatry, emergency medicine, and endocrinology. We currently have a contract 

offer extended to an orthopedic surgeon that recently visited PMH. We are very impressed with this 

candidate and believe he would be an excellent fit for PMH with his sports medicine expertise. He 

plans to decide by the end of the summer, but in the meantime, we continue to interview additional 

candidates. We also continue to interview physiatry and emergency medicine providers, and hope 

several will visit by fall. This week we also added gastroenterology to our recruitment list as the 

program continues to grow. Because of the growth of GI and dermatology, we have also begun 

searching for an Advanced Practice Clinician for each service line. 

 

2. Medical Staff Engagement 

        The Annual Medical Staff/ Board/ Leadership Team Summer Social will be held on Friday, July 22nd 

at WIT Cellars (Attachment H). The event will include dinner, music, and the opportunity to socialize 

with fellow PMH Teammates. Based upon RSVP's, we are expecting a great turn out and are looking 

forward to a relaxing evening!  

  

 

3. GI/Dermatology Update 

         Two of our newest and fastest growing services are gastroenterology (GI) and dermatology. Under 

the leadership of Dr. Mitchell L. Cohen, the PMH GI Program has grown very rapidly, to the point where 

patients are being scheduled out into September/October (Attachment I), with little marketing. In 

response, we are actively recruiting an Advanced Practice Clinician to work with Dr. Cohen and have 

also decided to begin recruiting another GI physician. This recruitment effort could take over a year as 

we pursue a GI specialist that will also perform endoscopic retrograde cholangiopancreatography or 

ERCPs. ERCP is a procedure to diagnose and treat problems in the liver, gallbladder, bile ducts and 

pancreas and is in short supply in our area and the State of Washington. We are continually getting 

referrals for ERCPs from large and small hospitals across the state and would love to help meet an 

unmet need. Under the leadership of Dr. Nicola Nylander, our dermatology program is also growing 

rapidly with routine appointments being scheduled 6+ months out. Fortunately, our Dermatology Clinic 

renovation was recently completed and is a wonderful addition to the practice. To increase our 

dermatology capacity, we have also begun recruiting and Advanced Practice Clinician to join Dr. 

Nylander in Benton City. While we are undergoing growing pains in both of these practices, their 

futures are bright. 

 

 

 

 



EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

1. Human Resources Update 

     As identified in the 2022 PMH Board Work Plan, I have included an update on several key Human 

Resources initiatives (Attachment J). These activities all play an important role in our Employee 

Development Pillar. Bryon Dirkes, Chief Human Resources Officer, will answer any questions the Board 

has regarding this report at the July Board Meeting. 

 

2. Leadership and Exempt Wage Scales 

          PMH has participated in all pre-identified staff and executive wage and benefit surveys for the 

2022 year, with the results now on file in Human Resources. The results are being used to evaluate our 

exempt salary grades to ensure market competitiveness with our wages. With the ongoing escalation 

of inflation across the U.S., labor shortages in healthcare, and other financial market forces impacting 

our workforce, this work is especially important to help remain competitive to attract and retain the 

talent to support PMH’s continued growth. Any recommended wage scale changes will be presented 

to the Board in our 2023 Budget, which the Board will be asked to approve in December and would be 

implemented in 2023. 

 

3. Employee Engagement 

     The Employee Engagement Team provides ideas and direction for employee activities at PPMH. The 
team recently reviewed employee feedback via an internal survey regarding Hospital Week activities 
and the feedback was very positive with some feedback around better refining the coordination of 
Hospital Week activities with work schedules and patient care. The team is currently planning the annual 
Pool Party set for August 19th (Attachment J1). Last year’s Pool Party was canceled because the City of 
Prosser was unable to secure enough chlorine to keep the public pool open. This year, we anticipate a 
large turnout, with families taking advantage of the great weather, good food and having fun in the 
water. Included in your packet is the July Employee Newsletter (Attachment K) which highlights some 
of the June/July activities at PMH including Bottles Brews and Barbecue and the Leadership Car Wash. 

 
 
 

Below are the 2022 Employee Engagement Activities: 
 
 
January 
1/25 Employee Engagement Debrief for employees: Multiple Sessions 
1/31 Departmental Employee Engagement survey follow-up and planning begins 
2/14 Superbowl Football (Grids) Game: Winners announced   
2/14 St. Valentine’s Day – Distribution of Boxed Truffle Chocolates by Administration 
3/13 – 4/6   March Madness, PMH Style Basketball Brackets competition 
4/8 March Madness winners announced, and final prizes awarded  
3/17 St. Patrick’s Day: Costume contest and Administration delivers shamrock cookies to staff 
4/15      Easter: Administration delivers chocolate Easter Rabbits to staff, with a visit by the Easter Bunny 



4/29 Departmental Employee Engagement survey follow-up and planning concludes 
5/5 Cinco de Mayo: Administration delivers cookies to staff 
5/9-13 Hospital Week:   
6/3 National Donut Day – Blissful Bites (Main Campus & Benton City Clinic) 
6/29 Leadership Car Wash & Tailgate BBQ with A.C.’s BBQ 
8/19 Summer Pool Party & Picnic – Prosser Aquatic Center/EJ Miller Park    
10/24 Staff Forums for 2023 Strategic Plan Development begins 
10/31 Halloween Costume contest & Chili Contest Judging 
11/11 Staff Forums for 2023 Strategic Plan Development concludes 
11/11 Veterans Day Breakfast 
11/14 2022 Employee and Medical Staff Engagement Survey Launch 
12/10 Holiday party and Casino night 
12/16 Holiday Contests & Employee Holiday Meal - Ugly Sweater Contest / Holiday Cookie Contest 
12/25 Christmas Meal for employees working the holiday (compliments of Nutrition Services) 
 
4. Staff Support Update- Abel Rubalcaba 
 

          On May 25th, the Prosser grain mill and antique shop were destroyed in an explosion and fire. 
The husband of Seirra Goble who works in Nutrition Services, and brother of Maria Rubalcaba who 
works in PFS, Abel Rubalcaba, was severely injured in the fire. Abel spent several weeks at Harborview 
and thankfully is now home. While he has a long, slow recovery ahead of him it is a miracle that he is 
alive and now home with his family, which includes the addition of a newborn son! The PMH Family 
immediately began raising money for Abel and his family through various means including a fundraising 
lunch at the hospital (Attachment L). In total, PMH raised over $7,000. Abel and his family are very 
grateful for the generosity of our team and express that in the attached thank you note (Attachment 
M). PMH and our team wish Abel and his family the best during his recovery. Godspeed! 

 
5. Leadership Development Institute (LDI) 
           
          The PMH Leadership Team spent July 15th off-site in a Leadership Development Institute retreat 

(LDI) focused on personal development and ongoing learning. We also took the opportunity to 

recognize members of the Leadership Team that had the highest Leadership Evaluation Management 

(LEM) scores in 2021 (Attachment N). Each of the top leaders received awards that reflect great 

leadership traits of animals in the wild (e.g., lions- courage, strength, decisiveness; chameleons- the 

ability to change and adopt; wolves-communication, teamwork; eagles- visionary, fearless) that they 

displayed in 2021. The leader of the pack, was Aurora Weddle-Diagnostic Imaging who received the 

king/ queen of the jungle lioness award for having the highest LEM score. Congratulations to all the 

winners for their outstanding leadership in 2021! Leaders received development resources that will 

assist them in preparing a personal development plan to assist them achieve their work goals. 

Following the day’s session each leader will spend time discussing their development plan with their 

one-up leader and identifying the 1-2 most important leadership competencies for their success then 

identify the learning activities that will support that development. 

     The second half of the LDI was spent in a teambuilding activity. The PMH leadership team went 
bowling at Atomic Bowl in Richland! There was definitely an element of competition between the six 
teams (which were selected by six team captains).  It is safe to say that there were no break-away 



performances by any one participant, but the “Hawaiian Kings Pins” (Phillip, Michael, Craig, and Terra) 
took home the trophies and bragging rights with their combined team score. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PMH Leadership Bowling Teams 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



      FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

      1. Financial Performance-June 

                 PMH had another strong financial month in June with gross revenue at an all-time high and 

expenses remaining below budget (Attachment O). As a result, we experienced an operating income 

of $1.5 million and a net income of $1.4 million, both significantly better than our budget. Year-to- 

date we also continue to perform well. Our gross revenue is 10% ($10 million) better than budget and 

our expenses are 2% ($924,310 under budget). This resulted in an operating margin of $5.5 million 

and a net income year-to-date of $5.1 million, again significantly better than our budget. This 

positions us very well with the USDA, banks, etc. if we need additional financing for our replacement 

facility project. These financial statements will be used by our auditors to develop an updated 

feasibility study for our project once we have a GMP. Some of our success this year can be attributed 

to COVID-19 Relief Funds we have received. As you can see on our COVID-19 Financial Plan 

(Attachment P), we have recognized $1.6 million of COVID-19 Relief Funds and have $145,788 to be 

recognized before the end of 2022. 

                 We recently learned from the Washington State Hospital Association (WSHA), PMH is somewhat 

unique in our ability to remain profitable (Attachment Q). Hospitals especially (urban /suburban) 

across the state and the country are experiencing significant operating and net income losses due to 

rising costs and volumes that are not rising fast enough to keep up with the rising costs. WSHA and 

the American Hospital Association (AHA) are working together to lobby for state and federal 

legislative relief that would increase reimbursement for hospitals. It was also noted that like PMH, 

most hospitals are out of COVID-19 Relief Funds. The difference, however, is that most hospitals still 

need the funds. I am pleased to report that both our financial performance and position remain very 

strong. 

 

2. PMH Clinic Financial Report 

          One of the reasons we are doing so well financially as an organization is because of the PMH 

Clinics. In total, the PMH Clinics are exceeding budget expectations (contribution margin) by $1.69 

million and $1.62 million better than last year (Attachment R). Equally important is that every clinic is 

exceeding their budget expectations. It should also be noted that our clinics now account for $53 

million of all PMH gross revenue. In addition to the financial performance of the clinics, the 

attachment also shows clinic and provider volumes, payor mix, and revenue by provider. PMH would 

not be in our current strong financial position without each of our providers and clinics. 

 

 

 

 

 



3. PMH Foundation Update 

          After a successful Bottles Brews and Barbecues event last month, the Foundation and Staff 

are catching their breath as they prepare for their next big event in September. The 2nd Annual 

Wine Country Classic Golf Tournament will be held September 9th starting at 9:00 a.m. at Canyon 

Lakes Golf Course in Kennewick (Attachment S). If you are interested in sponsorship information or 

putting a team together, please contact Shannon Hitchcock at 786-6601. 

       

 

 

 
   QUALITY 

 
1. Quality Committee Report 

      
          As outlined in the 2022 PMH Board Work Plan, Kristi Mellema- Chief Quality Officer, has 
provided an overview of the PMH Quality Committee activities over the past seven months 
(Attachment T). This committee has come a long way and improves every month under the 
leadership of Kristi and the commitment to excellence demonstrated by the PMH Leadership Team. 
 
 

2. 2022 Strategic and Patient Care Scorecard Update 
 

We track and trend many different metrics in all areas of the organization.  Why is it important to 

track metrics?  By tracking metrics, it allows us to improve our business results, achieve goals set forth 

in our Strategic Plan and enhance patient safety.   

 

     One method of creating a snapshot of how the organization is doing, is through the Strategic Plan 

Scorecard.  This scorecard is based on the Six Pillars of Excellence (Patient Loyalty, Medical Staff 

Development, Employee Development, Quality, Services, and Financial Performance).  As of June 

2022, the Strategic Plan Scorecard indicates that we are at, or above goal, or within 10% of goal on 38 

of the 46 metrics (83%).  Some June highlights include: the overall composite score for Patient Loyalty 

which is 93.7%.  The Women’s Health Center had the highest number of office visits in June compared 

to the first five months of the year with 708 visits; Diabetes Management in the clinic setting remains 

within 10% of goal at 23.35%; June had the highest number of surgeries and endoscopies at 337; and 

Financial Performance remains strong. This includes having 152 days cash on hand. 

 

     Like the Strategic Plan Scorecard, the Patient Care Scorecard is used as a snapshot of the most 
important patient care metrics.  As of June 2022, we are at or above goal or within 10% of goal on 11 
of the 16 metrics (69%).  The Labor and Delivery unit have made great strides over the course of the 
year for treatment of mothers with severe high blood pressure.  In January they were at 42.86%.  As of 



June, they are at 90.91%!  Healthcare associated infections have remained at 0% for the year.  Bar 
code scanning for both medication and patient compliance remain above the goal at 93.76% and 
94.83%.  We continue to work on the three ED metrics around patients leaving without being seen, 
time from when a provider decides to admit a patient to the time that patient is admitted to the acute 
care unit, and the time from when a patient arrives to the ED to the time, they are discharged 
home.  These have been challenging metrics to meet based on the increased number of ED visits that 
we have seen this year.  However, there is a plan of action to help reduce these times by having an 
advanced practice clinician 10 hours a day, 7 days a week during peak times.  We look forward to 
seeing these numbers drop over the next several months. These metrics are reviewed at year end, and 
some will be retired, and others added. 

 

 

 
3. The Rural Collaborative 

 
     While we changed our membership status in the Rural Collaborative (formerly the Washington 

Rural Collaborative) to Class B (from Class A = no seat on the Board or meeting requirements) last 
year, we are still an active participant in collaborative activities. Included in your packet is the 2021 
Collaborative Annual Report which outlines some of the Collaborative activities despite the pandemic 
(Attachment U). 

 
 

 
4. July Board Meeting 
      

          Typically, we do not have a Board Work Session in August, but this year we will not have one in 

July. In August we will have more information about our replacement facility project and will need a 

work session, while this month we have a light agenda as we prepare for August and September. The 

July Board Meeting will be routine with a review of our financial statements and updates of the 

replacement facility project, 2022 Strategic Plan and our 2022 Strategic and Patient Care Scorecards. 

          

 

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other hospital activities, please contact me at 

(269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the hospital.                                                                              



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment A

































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment B



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment C









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment D























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment E







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment F



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment G









































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment H



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment I



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment J





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment J1



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment K









































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment L



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment N



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O



























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment P



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Q













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment R



















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment S



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment T





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment U
























	Board Packet Cover sheet
	7.28.22. Board  Meeting Agenda
	BOC Work Plan FY2022
	Copy of _2022 PATIENT CARE SCORECARD
	Copy of _2022 Strategic Plan Scorecard
	06.28.2022 Board Work Session Minutes
	06.30.22  Board Minutes
	7.20.22 JCC Minutes
	07-25-22 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA
	06.27.22 Finance Committee Minutes updated
	July 2022 CEO Memo Final
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J
	Attachment J1
	Attachment K
	Attachment L
	Attachment M
	Attachment N
	Attachment O
	Attachment  P
	Attachment Q
	Attachment R
	Attachment S
	Attachment T
	Attachment U



